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elevation of the impoundment at 361.92 
to 362.42 feet NAVD 88. Oswego Hydro 
proposes to continue releasing a year- 
round minimum flow of 300 cfs or 
inflow, whichever is less, to the Oswego 
River downstream of the project, but 
does not propose to continue water 
quality monitoring and mitigative flow 
releases when inflow is less than 1,900 
cfs from June 1 through October 31. In 
addition, Oswego Hydro proposes to 
continue operating and maintaining the 
trap and transport facility and the 
downstream fishway for eel and fish 
passage. Oswego Hydro proposes to 
develop a fish passage operation and 
maintenance plan, implement a Bat and 
Bald Eagle Protection Plan that it filed 
in the application, and maintain an 
existing interpretative display and 
fencing for the protection of historic 
properties. 

m. A copy of the application can be 
viewed on the Commission’s website at 
http://www.ferc.gov using the 
‘‘eLibrary’’ link. Enter the docket 
number excluding the last three digits in 
the docket number field to access the 
document. For assistance, contact FERC 
Online Support. 

All filings must (1) bear in all capital 
letters the title ‘‘COMMENTS,’’ ‘‘REPLY 
COMMENTS,’’ 
‘‘RECOMMENDATIONS,’’ ‘‘TERMS 
AND CONDITIONS,’’ or 
‘‘PRESCRIPTIONS;’’ (2) set forth in the 
heading the name of the applicant and 
the project number of the application to 
which the filing responds; (3) furnish 
the name of the person submitting the 
filing; and (4) otherwise comply with 
the requirements of 18 CFR 385.2001 
through 385.2005. All comments, 
recommendations, terms and conditions 
or prescriptions must set forth their 
evidentiary basis and otherwise comply 
with the requirements of 18 CFR 4.34(b). 
Agencies may obtain copies of the 
application directly from the applicant. 
Each filing must be accompanied by 
proof of service on all persons listed on 
the service list prepared by the 
Commission in this proceeding, in 
accordance with 18 CFR 4.34(b) and 
385.2010. 

The Commission’s Office of Public 
Participation (OPP) supports meaningful 
public engagement and participation in 
Commission proceedings. OPP can help 
members of the public, including 
landowners, community organizations, 
Tribal members and others, access 
publicly available information and 
navigate Commission processes. For 
public inquiries and assistance with 
making filings such as interventions, 
comments, or requests for rehearing, the 
public is encouraged to contact OPP at 
(202) 502–6595 or OPP@ferc.gov. 

You may also register online at 
https://ferconline.ferc.gov/ 
FERCOnline.aspx to be notified via 
email of new filings and issuances 
related to this or other pending projects. 
For assistance, contact FERC Online 
Support. 

n. The applicant must file on or 
before 5:00 p.m. Eastern Time on 
August 1, 2025: (1) a copy of the water 
quality certification; (2) a copy of the 
request for certification, including proof 
of the date on which the certifying 
agency received the request; or (3) 
evidence of waiver of water quality 
certification. 

o. Procedural Schedule: The 
application will be processed according 
to the following schedule. Revisions to 
the schedule will be made as 
appropriate. 

Milestone Target date 

Filing of Comments, Rec-
ommendations, Terms 
and Conditions, and Pre-
scriptions.

August 1, 2025. 

Filing of Reply Comments ... September 15, 2025. 

p. Final amendments to the 
application must be filed with the 
Commission on or before 5:00 p.m. 
Eastern Time on July 2, 2025. 

Dated: June 2, 2025. 
Debbie-Anne A. Reese, 
Secretary. 
[FR Doc. 2025–10356 Filed 6–5–25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 6717–01–P 

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 
AGENCY 

[FRL OP–OFA–181] 

Environmental Impact Statements; 
Notice of Availability 

Responsible Agency: Office of Federal 
Activities, General Information 202– 
564–5632 or https://www.epa.gov/nepa. 
Weekly receipt of Environmental Impact 

Statements (EIS) 
Filed May 23, 2025 10 a.m. EST 

Through June 2, 2025 10 a.m. EST 
Pursuant to CEQ Guidance on 42 U.S.C. 

4332. 
Notice: Section 309(a) of the Clean Air 

Act requires that EPA make public its 
comments on EISs issued by other 
Federal agencies. EPA’s comment letters 
on EISs are available at: https://
cdxapps.epa.gov/cdx-enepa-II/public/ 
action/eis/search. 
EIS No. 20250071, Final, APHIS, OR, 

ADOPTION—Final Environmental 
Impact Statement for the Barred Owl 
Management Strategy, Contact: Erica 
Wells 253–254–4781. 

The Animal and Plant Health 
Inspection Service (APHIS) has adopted 
the Fish and Wildlife Service’s Final EIS 
No. 20240119 filed 06/28/2024 with the 
Environmental Protection Agency. The 
APHIS was a cooperating agency on this 
project. Therefore, republication of the 
document is not necessary. 

EIS No. 20250072, Final, NMFS, OR, 
ADOPTION—Elliott State Research 
Forest Habitat Conservation Plan, 
Contact: Jeff Young 541–315–1571. 

The National Marine Fisheries Service 
(NMFS) has adopted the Fish and 
Wildlife Service’s Final EIS No. 
20250006 filed 01/02/2025 with the 
Environmental Protection Agency. The 
NMFS was a cooperating agency on this 
project. Therefore, republication of the 
document is not necessary. 

EIS No. 20250073, Final, FHWA, PA, 
U.S. 6219, Section 050 Transportation 
Improvement Project, Contact: 
Benjamin Harvey 717–221–3701. 

Under 23 U.S.C. 139(n)(2), FHWA has 
issued a single document that consists 
of a final environmental impact 
statement and record of decision. 
Therefore, the 30-day wait/review 
period under NEPA does not apply to 
this action. 

EIS No. 20250074, Revised Draft, 
USMC, TT, Commonwealth of the 
Northern Mariana Islands Joint 
Military Training, Comment Period 
Ends: 08/20/2025, Contact: Lisa 
Graham 703–939–7701. 

EIS No. 20250075, Draft, FERC, MA, 
Hydropower Licenses for the 
Northfield Mountain Pumped Storage 
Project et al., Comment Period Ends: 
07/29/2025, Contact: Office of 
External Affairs 866–208–3372. 

EIS No. 20250076, Draft, FERC, VT, 
Hydropower Licenses for the Wilder, 
Bellow Falls, and Vernon 
Hydroelectric Projects, Comment 
Period Ends: 07/29/2025, Contact: 
Office of External Affairs 866–208– 
3372. 

EIS No. 20250077, Draft, BLM, AL, 
Warrior Met Coal, Inc. Federal Coal 
Lease by Application, Comment 
Period Ends: 07/21/2025, Contact: 
Shayne Banks 601–919–4652. 

EIS No. 20250078, Draft, APHIS, NAT, 
The State University of New York 
College of Environmental Science and 
Forestry Petition (19–309–01p) for 
Determination of Nonregulated Status 
for Blight-Tolerant Darling 54 
American Chestnut (Castanea 
dentata), Comment Period Ends: 07/ 
21/2025, Contact: Alan Pearson 301– 
851–3944. 
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Dated: June 2, 2025. 
Nancy Abrams, 
Associate Director, Office of Federal 
Activities. 
[FR Doc. 2025–10321 Filed 6–5–25; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 6560–50–P 

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION 

[File No. 241 0059; Docket No. C–4820] 

Synopsys, Inc. and ANSYS, Inc.; 
Analysis of Agreement Containing 
Consent Orders To Aid Public 
Comment 

AGENCY: Federal Trade Commission. 
ACTION: Proposed consent agreement; 
request for comment. 

SUMMARY: The consent agreement in this 
matter settles alleged violations of 
Federal law prohibiting unfair methods 
of competition. The attached Analysis of 
Proposed Consent Order to Aid Public 
Comment describes both the allegations 
in the complaint and the terms of the 
consent order—embodied in the consent 
agreement—that would settle these 
allegations. 

DATES: Comments must be received on 
or before July 7, 2025. 
ADDRESSES: Interested parties may file 
comments online or on paper by 
following the instructions in the 
Request for Comment part of the 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION section 
below. Please write: ‘‘Synopsys and 
ANSYS; File No. 241 0059’’ on your 
comment and file your comment online 
at https://www.regulations.gov by 
following the instructions on the web- 
based form. If you prefer to file your 
comment on paper, please mail your 
comment to the following address: 
Federal Trade Commission, Office of the 
Secretary, 600 Pennsylvania Avenue 
NW, Mail Stop H–144 (Annex S), 
Washington, DC 20580. 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Kara 
Monahan (202–326–2018), Health Care 
Division, Bureau of Competition, 
Federal Trade Commission, 400 7th 
Street SW, Washington, DC 20024. 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: Pursuant 
to section 6(f) of the Federal Trade 
Commission Act, 15 U.S.C. 46(f), and 
FTC Rule § 2.34, 16 CFR 2.34, notice is 
hereby given that the above-captioned 
consent agreement containing a consent 
order to cease and desist, having been 
filed with and accepted, subject to final 
approval, by the Commission, has been 
placed on the public record for a period 
of 30 days. The following Analysis of 
Agreement Containing Consent Order to 
Aid Public Comment describes the 

terms of the consent agreement and the 
allegations in the complaint. An 
electronic copy of the full text of the 
consent agreement package can be 
obtained from the FTC website at this 
web address: https://www.ftc.gov/news- 
events/commission-actions. 

The public is invited to submit 
comments on this document. For the 
Commission to consider your comment, 
we must receive it on or before July 7, 
2025. Write ‘‘Synopsys and ANSYS; File 
No. 241 0059’’ on your comment. Your 
comment—including your name and 
your State—will be placed on the public 
record of this proceeding, including, to 
the extent practicable, on the https://
www.regulations.gov website. 

Because of the agency’s heightened 
security screening, postal mail 
addressed to the Commission will be 
delayed. We strongly encourage you to 
submit your comments online through 
the https://www.regulations.gov 
website. If you prefer to file your 
comment on paper, write ‘‘Synopsys 
and Ansys; File No. 241 0059’’ on your 
comment and on the envelope, and mail 
your comment by overnight service to: 
Federal Trade Commission, Office of the 
Secretary, 600 Pennsylvania Avenue 
NW, Mail Stop H–144 (Annex S), 
Washington, DC 20580. 

Because your comment will be placed 
on the publicly accessible website at 
https://www.regulations.gov, you are 
solely responsible for making sure your 
comment does not include any sensitive 
or confidential information. In 
particular, your comment should not 
include sensitive personal information, 
such as your or anyone else’s Social 
Security number; date of birth; driver’s 
license number or other State 
identification number, or foreign 
country equivalent; passport number; 
financial account number; or credit or 
debit card number. You are also solely 
responsible for making sure your 
comment does not include sensitive 
health information, such as medical 
records or other individually 
identifiable health information. In 
addition, your comment should not 
include any ‘‘trade secret or any 
commercial or financial information 
which . . . is privileged or 
confidential’’—as provided by section 
6(f) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. 46(f), and 
FTC Rule § 4.10(a)(2), 16 CFR 
4.10(a)(2)—including competitively 
sensitive information such as costs, 
sales statistics, inventories, formulas, 
patterns, devices, manufacturing 
processes, or customer names. 

Comments containing material for 
which confidential treatment is 
requested must be filed in paper form, 
must be clearly labeled ‘‘Confidential,’’ 

and must comply with FTC Rule 
§ 4.9(c). In particular, the written 
request for confidential treatment that 
accompanies the comment must include 
the factual and legal basis for the 
request and must identify the specific 
portions of the comment to be withheld 
from the public record. See FTC Rule 
§ 4.9(c). Your comment will be kept 
confidential only if the General Counsel 
grants your request in accordance with 
the law and the public interest. Once 
your comment has been posted on 
https://www.regulations.gov—as legally 
required by FTC Rule § 4.9(b)—we 
cannot redact or remove your comment 
from that website, unless you submit a 
confidentiality request that meets the 
requirements for such treatment under 
FTC Rule § 4.9(c), and the General 
Counsel grants that request. 

Visit the FTC website at https://
www.ftc.gov to read this document and 
the news release describing this matter. 
The FTC Act and other laws the 
Commission administers permit the 
collection of public comments to 
consider and use in this proceeding, as 
appropriate. The Commission will 
consider all timely and responsive 
public comments it receives on or before 
July 7, 2025. For information on the 
Commission’s privacy policy, including 
routine uses permitted by the Privacy 
Act, see https://www.ftc.gov/site- 
information/privacy-policy. 

Analysis of Agreement Containing 
Consent Orders To Aid Public Comment 

The Federal Trade Commission 
(‘‘Commission’’) has accepted for public 
comment, subject to final approval, an 
Agreement Containing Consent Orders 
(‘‘Consent Agreement’’) from Synopsys, 
Inc. (‘‘Synopsys’’) and ANSYS, Inc. 
(‘‘Ansys’’) (collectively, ‘‘Respondents’’) 
that is designed to remedy the 
anticompetitive effects that may result 
from Synopsys’ acquisition of Ansys. 
Pursuant to an Agreement and Plan of 
Merger dated January 15, 2024, 
Synopsys proposes to acquire Ansys in 
a transaction valued at approximately 
$35 billion (the ‘‘Proposed 
Acquisition’’). The Commission alleges 
in its Complaint that the Proposed 
Acquisition, if consummated, would 
violate section 7 of the Clayton Act, as 
amended, 15 U.S.C. 18, and section 5 of 
the Federal Trade Commission Act, as 
amended, 15 U.S.C. 45, by substantially 
lessening competition in the following 
markets: (1) optical software tools; (2) 
photonic software tools for the design 
and simulation of photonic devices; and 
(3) Register Transfer Level (‘‘RTL’’) 
power consumption analysis tools. The 
Consent Agreement will remedy the 
alleged violations by preserving the 
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DEPARTMENT OF THE NAVY 
HEADQUARTERS UNITED STATES MARINE CORPS 

3000 MARINE CORPS PENTAGON 
WASHINGTON, DC  20350-3000 

  

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    
June 6, 2025 

 

SUBJECT: NOTICE OF AVAILABILITY OF THE REVISED DRAFT ENVIRONMENTAL 

IMPACT STATEMENT FOR THE COMMONWEALTH OF THE NORTHERN 

MARIANA ISLANDS JOINT MILITARY TRAINING 

 

Dear Sir or Madam: 

The United States Marine Corps has prepared a Revised Draft 

Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) to support land-based training 

operations and construction of supporting infrastructure on the 

island of Tinian in the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana 

Islands (CNMI).  

 

The proposed training infrastructure would include two live-fire 

ranges, two surface radar towers, thirteen Landing Zones, airfield 

improvements, and two ammunition holding areas. In addition, the 

former U.S. Agency for Global Media (USAGM) site on Tinian would be 

repurposed into an expeditionary Base Camp (including existing 

communication towers on the USAGM sites on Tinian and Saipan). A 

biosecurity facility would also be constructed at the Port of 

Tinian and an aircraft shelter would be constructed on U.S. Air 

Force Divert leased property.  To ensure training unit and public 

safety during training, an on-island Training Area and Range 

Operations Command (Range Control) would be established which would 

schedule training and coordinate with local officials and the 

public.  

 

The Marine Corps initiated a 75-day public comment period for the 

CNMI Joint Military Training Revised Draft EIS on June 6, 2025.  

In-person public meetings will be held on Tinian, Saipan, and Rota 

to provide an overview of the Revised Draft EIS.  Members of the 

public are encouraged to participate in the environmental review 

process by providing comments on Revised Draft EIS.   

 

Public meetings will be set in an open-house format and include 

information stations on the Proposed Action and environmental 

analysis.  Additionally, a comment station will be in place so that 

you can provide written or oral comments, and project team members 

will be available at the information stations to discuss the 

Proposed Action.  A Chamorro and a Carolinian interpreter will be 

available at the meetings.  The meetings on Tinian and Saipan will 

begin at 5 p.m. ChST, while the meeting on Rota will begin at 3 

p.m. ChST. Please join us at the following locations for meetings. 
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Tinian Junior/Senior High School Cafeteria, Canal Street, San 
Jose, Tinian:  Monday, June 23, 2025, and Tuesday, June 24, 
2025 

 Crowne Plaza (Hibiscus Hall), Coral Tree Avenue, Garapan, 
Saipan: Wednesday, June 25, 2025, and Thursday, June 26, 2025 

 Rota Mayors Office, San Francisco de Borja Highway, Tatachok, 
Rota:  Friday, June 27, 2025 

 
The Revised Draft EIS, public comment form, and public meeting 

materials are available on the project website at 
https://www.cnmijointmilitarytrainingeis.com.  Copies of the 
Revised Draft EIS are also available at the following libraries: 
Tinian Public Library, Joeten-Kiyu Public Library (Saipan), and 
Rota Public Library. 

 
Comments on the Revised Draft EIS and effects to historic 

properties under Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation 
Act will be accepted from June 6, 2025, to August 20, 2025.  
Written comments must be postmarked or submitted electronically on 
or before August 20, 2025, to be considered.  Comments will be 
accepted at the public meetings, through the project website, or by 
mail to:   

CJMT Project Manager 
Naval Facilities Engineering Systems Command, Pacific  
c/o AECOM 
415 Chalan San Antonio Road, Suite 112,  
Baltej Pavilion Building 
Tamuning, Guam 96913 

 
All comments submitted by August 20, 2025, will become part of 

the public record. Equal weight will be given to oral and written 
comments.  All comments will be considered in the development of 
the Final EIS.   

 
The USMC welcomes your input. For more information, please visit 

the website at https://www.cnmijointmilitarytrainingeis.com.  
 
 
       Sincerely,  
 

 

      Mr. Todd Armsworth 
DPRI/Pacific Posture Branch Chief 
Marine Corps Installations Command 



We welcome your comments – your input matters! www.cnmijointmilitarytrainingeis.com

The United States Marine Corps has prepared 

a Revised Draft Environmental Impact 

Statement (EIS) for joint military training to 

support land-based expeditionary ground and 

aviation warfare training for all service 

components within lands leased by the 

military on Tinian.

The Revised Draft EIS is available

on the project website 

https://www.cnmijointmilitarytrainingeis.com

and at the following libraries:

Tinian Public Library

Joeten-Kiyu Public Library (Saipan)

Rota Public Library

Public Comment Period

June 6, 2025 through August 20, 2025

Public Meetings

The meetings on Tinian and Saipan will begin 

at 5 p.m. ChST, while the meeting on Rota will 

begin at 3 p.m. ChST at the following 

locations:

Tinian Junior/Senior High School Cafeteria
Canal Street, San Jose, Tinian 

Monday, June 23, 2025 and Tuesday, June 24, 2025

Crowne Plaza (Hibiscus Hall)
Coral Tree Avenue, Garapan, Saipan

Wednesday, June 25, 2025 and Thursday, June 26, 2025

Rota Mayor’s Office
San Francisco de Borja Highway

Tatachok, Rota

Friday, June 27, 2025

Revised Draft Environmental Impact Statement for
Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands Joint Military Training



Comments on the Revised Draft EIS and potential

effects to historic properties pursuant to Section 106 of 

the National Historic Preservation Act are being 

accepted from June 6, 2025 to August 20, 2025.

● In person at one of the public meetings

● Through the project website:      

 https://www.cnmijointmilitarytrainingeis.com

● By mail to:

 CJMT Project Manager

 Naval Facilities Engineering Systems Command,

 Pacific c/o AECOM

 415 Chalan San Antonio Road, Suite 112

 Baltej Pavilion Building

 Tamuning, Guam 96913

Written comments must be postmarked or

submitted electronically on or before

August 20, 2025 to be considered in the

preparation of the Final EIS.

Submit Your Comments

For more 

Information 

scan QR code

CJMT Project Manager

Naval Facilities Engineering Systems Command, Pacific c/o AECOM

415 Chalan San Antonio Rd., Suite 112

Baltej Pavilion Building

Tamuning, Guam 96913
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From: CNMI Joint Military Training EIS <cnmijointmilitarytrainingeis+gmail.com@icontactmail6.com>
Sent: Thursday, June 12, 2025 2:16 PM
To:
Subject: Notice of Availability and Public Meetings for the CNMI Joint Military Training Revised Draft 

Environmental Impact Statement

This is an automated email notification. Please do not respond to this email address. This mailbox is 
not being monitored.
 

Revised Draft Environmental Impact 
Statement for Commonwealth of the 

Northern Mariana Islands Joint Military 
Training 

The United States Marine Corps has prepared a Revised Draft 
Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) for joint military training to support 
land-based expeditionary ground and aviation warfare training for all service 
components within lands leased by the military on Tinian. 

The Revised Draft EIS is available on the project website 
https://www.cnmijointmilitarytrainingeis.com and at the following 
libraries: Tinian Public Library, Joeten-Kiyu Public Library (Saipan), and 
Rota Public Library. 

We welcome your comments - your input matters! 
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Public Comment Period: 
June 6, 2025 through August 20, 2025 

Public Meetings: 
June 23, 2025 through June 27, 2025 

The meetings on Tinian and Saipan will begin at 5 p.m. ChST, while the 
meeting on Rota will begin at 3 p.m. ChST at the following locations: 

Tinian 

Monday, June 23, 2025 and Tuesday, June 24, 2025 
Tinian Junior/Senior High School Cafeteria 
Canal Street, San Jose, Tinian 

Saipan 

Wednesday, June 25, 2025 and Thursday, June 26, 2025 
Crowne Plaza (Hibiscus Hall) 
Coral Tree Avenue, Garapan, Saipan 

Rota 

Friday, June 27, 2025 
Rota Mayor’s Office 
San Francisco de Borja Highway, Tatachok, Rota 
 

How to Submit Comments 

Comments on the Revised Draft EIS and potential effects to historic 
properties pursuant to Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act 
are being accepted from June 6, 2025 to August 20, 2025. 

• In person at one of the public meetings
• Through the project website:

https://www.cnmijointmilitarytrainingeis.com
• By mail to:

CJMT Project Manager 
Naval Facilities Engineering Systems Command, Pacific c/o AECOM 
415 Chalan San Antonio Road, Suite 112 
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Baltej Pavilion Building 
Tamuning, Guam 96913 

Written comments must be postmarked or submitted electronically on or 
before August 20, 2025 to be considered in the preparation of the Final EIS. 
 

www.cnmijointmilitarytrainingeis.com 

Manage Your Subscription 

This message was sent to email@domain.com from cnmijointmilitarytrainingeis@gmail.com 

CNMI Joint Military Training EIS 
c/o AECOM 415 Chalan San Antonio Road, Suite 112 

Tamuning, Guam 96913, GU 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
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Revised Draft Environmental Impact Statement for 
Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands

Joint Military Training 

NOTICE OF AVAILABILITY OF A

REVISED DRAFT ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENT AND PUBLIC MEETINGS

The United States Marine Corps has prepared a Revised Draft Environmental Impact Statement 

(EIS) for joint military training to support land-based expeditionary ground and aviation warfare 

training for all service components within lands leased by the military on Tinian.

The Marine Corps invites the public to attend in-person public meetings under the National

Environmental Policy Act to learn about the Revised Draft EIS and provide comments. The 

public meetings will also serve as an opportunity to provide comments about potential effects to 

historic properties pursuant to Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act. The 

Revised Draft EIS is available on the project website at 

https://www.cnmijointmilitarytrainingeis.com and at the following libraries: Tinian Public Library, 

Joeten-Kiyu Public Library (Saipan), and Rota Public Library.

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD
Comments on the Revised Draft EIS and potential effects to historic properties pursuant to Section

106 of the National Historic Preservation Act are being accepted from June 6, 2025 to August 20, 

2025. Written comments must be postmarked or submitted electronically on or before August 20, 

2025 to be considered.

SUBMIT COMMENTS:

● In person at one of the public meetings

● Through the project website: https://www.cnmijointmilitarytrainingeis.com

● By mail to: CJMT Project Manager, Naval Facilities Engineering Systems Command, 

 Pacific c/o AECOM, 415 Chalan San Antonio Road, Suite 112, Baltej Pavilion Bldg.,

 Tamuning, Guam 96913

For more information, scan QR code for project website. 

PUBLIC MEETINGS

Project team members will be available at information stations and at a comment station to 

receive written or oral comments. A Chamorro and a Carolinian interpreter will be available.

The meetings on Tinian and Saipan will begin at 5 p.m. ChST, while the meeting on

Rota will begin at 3 p.m. ChST. 

Tinian Junior/Senior High School Cafeteria, Canal Street, San Jose, Tinian 

Monday, June 23, 2025

Tuesday, June 24, 2025

Crowne Plaza (Hibiscus Hall), Coral Tree Avenue, Garapan, Saipan 

Wednesday, June 25, 2025

Thursday, June 26, 2025

Rota Mayor's Office, San Francisco de Borja Highway, Tatachok, Rota

Friday, June 27, 2025

“PURCHASE OF ONE (1) NEW MULTI-FUNCTION COPIER (DIGITAL 
COLOR COPIER, NETWORK PRINTER, SCANNER W/ COLOR SENDING 
AND FAX) FOR THE OGM - CLEAN HEAVY DUTY VEHICLE PROGRAM”

COPIES OF THE SPECIFICATIONS MAY BE OBTAINED ON THE MUNIS VENDOR ACCESS 
PORTAL (https://selfservice.dof.gov.mp/vss/) OR AT THE OFFICE OF THE DIRECTOR OF 
PROCUREMENT SERVICES, LOCATED AT BLDG. NO. 12386, ASCENCION DRIVE, CAPITOL 
HILL, SAIPAN, DURING REGULAR WORKING HOURS.

QUESTIONS REGARDING THIS ITB MUST BE SUBMITTED IN WRITING AND CAN BE 
MADE TO MR. EPIPHANIO E. CABRERA JR., STATE ADMINISTRATER-OGM VIA EMAIL AT 
EPI.CABRERA@GOV.MP NO LATER THAN 4:00 P.M. ChST., JUNE 20, 2025.

THE PROVISIONS OF THE CNMI PROCUREMENT REGULATIONS, NMIAC  
SECTION 70-30.3-725 AND 70-30.3-730 PROHIBITING GRATUITIES, KICKBACKS 
AND CONTINGENT FEES SHALL APPLY.

THE CNMI GOVERNMENT RESERVES THE RIGHT TO REJECT ANY OR ALL BIDS, OR  
PORTIONS THEREOF, AND WAIVE IMMATERIAL DEFECTS IF TO DO SO WOULD BE IN THE 
BEST INTEREST OF THE CNMI GOVERNMENT.

Department of Finance
Division of Procurement Services

P.O. Box 10008 C.K., Saipan, MP 96950 | Phone: (670) 664-1500 | Fax: (670) 664-1515

ITB25-GOV/OGM-42500092
SUBMISSION DATE: JUNE 30, 2025 | TIME: 9:30 A.M.

INVITATION TO BID

/S/ ARNOLD I. PALACIOS 
GOVERNOR, CNMI

/S/ GERALDINE T. CRUZ 
DIRECTOR, P.S.

(PSS) — Mst. Tharatun B. Tazri 
and Samantha L. Escharcha are 
the valedictorian and salutatorian 
of Hopwood Middle School, 
which held its promotion cer-

emony on Tuesday, June 3, for 
186 eighth-graders now moving 
on to high school.

Hopwood’s ceremony is the 
79th since its establishment in 

Tazri, Escarcha are Hopwood’s top promotees

The Outstanding Cadet Leadership Award is presented to Zihao Huang 
by PSS Senior Director Jackie Quitugua.

Class valedictorian Mst. Tharatun B. Tazri receives the Board of Educa-
tion Academic Excellence Award from BOE Chairman Aschumar Kodep 
Ogumuro-Uludong while Vice Chairman Anthony Dela Cruz Barcinas, 
and BOE member Andrew L. Orsini look on.

Hopwood Middle School salutatorian Samantha L. Escarcha receives 
the Commissioner of Education Academic Excellence Award from Com-
missioner of Education Dr. Lawrence F. Camacho.               PSS photos

1949. It is the second largest 
public school in terms of student 
population.

Of the 186 promoted students, 
43 are Presidential Gold Medal 
recipients and 69 are Presidential 
Silver Meda recipients.

The theme of their promotion 
was “A great accomplishment 
shouldn’t be the end of the road, 
just the starting point for the 
next leap forward” — a quote by 
American author and business-
man Harvey Mackay.

As valedictorian, Tazri re-
ceived the Board of Education 
Academic Excellence Award 
from BOE Chairman Aschumar 
Kodep Ogumoro-Uludong, 
Vice Chairman Anthony L. 
Barcinas, and BOE member 
Andrew L. Orsini.

Class salutatorian Escarcha 
received the Commissioner of 
Education Award from Com-
missioner of Education Dr. 
Lawrence F. Camacho and other 
PSS officials.

Enrest Jielyan M. Dela Cruz 
was the recipient of the 2025 
Principal’s Leadership Award 
“not just for what he achieved 
but for how he carried himself 
with humility, responsibil-
ity, and respect for others.”  
Whether in the classroom, during 
group projects, or while support 
school events, Dela Cruz led by 
example.  

The Outstanding Cadet Lead-
ership Award was presented to 
Zihao Huang, who was honored 
for “consistently demonstrating 
exceptional leadership, academ-
ic achievement, citizenship, and 
patriotic excellence through the 
school year in the Middle School 

CONTINUED ON PAGE 15

A newly promoted Hopwood stu-
dent smiles for the camera.

A newly promoted Hopwood stu-
dent displays the hang-loose sign.,



Comments on the Revised Draft 

EIS and potential effects to historic 

properties per Section 106 of the 

National Historic Preservation Act 

are being accepted from

June 6 to August 20, 2025

Submit your comments:

 In person at one of the public 

meetings

 Through the project website

 By mail to:

CJMT Project Manager

Naval Facilities Engineering 

Systems Command, Pacific c/o 

AECOM

415 Chalan San Antonio Road, 

Suite 112

Baltej Pavilion Building

Tamuning, Guam 96913

Written comments must be postmarked 

or submitted electronically on or before 

August 20, 2025, to be considered in 

the preparation of the Final EIS and 

National Historic Preservation Act 

Section 106 process.

The United States Marine Corps has prepared a Revised Draft 

Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) to support land-based expeditionary 

ground and aviation warfare training for all service components within lands 

leased by the military on Tinian

Public Meetings Submit Comments
Tinian Monday, June 23, 2025

Tuesday, June 24, 2025

stating at 5 p.m. ChST 

Tinian Junior/Senior High School 

(Cafeteria)

Canal Street, San Jose, Tinian

Saipan Wednesday, June 25, 2025

Thursday, June 26, 2025

starting at 5 p.m. ChST 

Crowne Plaza (Hibiscus Hall)

Coral Tree Avenue, Garapan, 

Saipan

Rota Friday, June 27, 2025

starting at 3 p.m. ChST

Mayor’s Office

San Francisco de Borja Highway, 

Tatachok, Rota

www.cnmijointmilitarytrainingeis.com
For more information 

scan the QR code



A Notice of Availability was published in the Federal Register on June 6, 2025, for the 

Revised Draft Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) to support land-based expeditionary 

ground and aviation training for all service components within lands leased by the military 

on Tinian. This notice announces a 15-day extension of the public comment period from 

June 6 to September 4, 2025.

How to Access Revised Draft EIS Information

The Revised Draft EIS is available for public review online at:

www.cnmijointmilitarytrainingeis.com and copies of the 

Revised Draft EIS are available at the following libraries:

1.  Joeten-Kiyu Public Library, Saipan.

2.  Tinian Public Library, Tinian.

3.  Antonio C. Atalig Memorial Rota Public Library, Rota.

www.cnmijointmilitarytrainingeis.com

Scan the QR code 

for more information

15-Day Extension of the Public Comment Period

Comments on the Revised Draft EIS and potential effects to historic properties per 

Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act are being accepted from

June 6 to September 4, 2025

 Through the project website (listed at the bottom of flyer or use QR 

code above)

 By mail to:  

 CJMT Project Manager

 Naval Facilities Engineering Systems Command, Pacific

 c/o AECOM

 415 Chalan San Antonio Road, Suite 112, Baltej Pavilion Building

 Tamuning, Guam 96913

Submit Comments by September 4, 2025
Written comments must be postmarked or submitted electronically on or 

before September 4, 2025, to be considered in the preparation of the 

Final EIS and National Historic Preservation Act Section 106 process.

http://www.cnmijointmilitarytrainingeis.com/
http://www.cnmijointmilitarytrainingeis.com/
http://www.cnmijointmilitarytrainingeis.com/
http://www.cnmijointmilitarytrainingeis.com/
http://www.cnmijointmilitarytrainingeis.com/


									       
									       
					     	
					     	
				  

Hafa Adai, Tirow, and Welcome

Proposed Action 
 

In developing this Proposed Action, the Marine Corps evaluated the changes in the way U.S. Armed

Forces currently prepare for future conflicts and carefully considered the comments and suggestions
submitted on the 2015 Draft EIS/Overseas EIS by elected officials and government agencies of the
CNMI, federal agencies, and the public. The Marine Corps’ revised proposed training concept for the

Military Lease Area on Tinian fully supports military training requirements and recognizes the importance

of minimizing the impacts of military training on the residents of Tinian. First, the training concept was

purposefully designed to locate live-fire ranges within the northern portion of the island, away from the
village of San Jose, recreational beaches, tourism areas, and cultural and natural resources. Second,

understanding that public access to the Military Lease Area is important to the community, the Marine

Corps would establish an on-island Training Area and Range Operations Command (Range Control) to

foster communication between the community and the military to allow access to the Military Lease Area

when it may safely be accommodated, even

during ongoing training events. 

After developing this training concept, between

January 2020 and September 2024, the Marine

Corps engaged the CNMI government in a series

of virtual and in-person discussions on the revised

training concept and revised environmental

analysis. In August 2023, the Marine Corps held

public information sharing sessions on the islands

of Tinian, Saipan, and Rota to inform the public at

large of the revised training concept.

On June 6, 2025, the United States (U.S.) Marine Corps initiated a 75-day public review

and comment period for the Revised Draft Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) for

Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands (CNMI) Joint Military Training. The Marine

Corps is accepting public comments on the Revised Draft EIS and potential effects to historic
properties per Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act. The public review and

comment period will continue through August 20, 2025.

Revised Draft Environmental Impact Statement for 
Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands 

Joint Military Training

▶	 For more information on the Proposed Action

	 and its purpose and 		  		

	 need, review Section

	 1.2 and Section 2.1 of

	 the Revised Draft

	 EIS on the project

	 website listed below.

https://www.cnmijointmilitarytrainingeis.com



Purpose and Need 
The purpose of the Proposed Action is to reduce

joint training deficiencies for U.S. Armed Forces in
the Indo-Pacific area of operations. The Proposed
Action is needed to enable U.S. Armed Forces to

meet their individual mandates in federal law (Title

10) to be trained and equipped to protect U.S.

national security.

3Please visit the project website https://www.cnmijointmilitarytrainingeis.com 2

Proposed Action (continued) 

  
This revised training concept, or Proposed

Action, is assessed in the Revised Draft EIS.

The Proposed Action would support land-based

expeditionary ground and aviation warfare

training for all service components within lands

leased by the military on Tinian. New training

infrastructure would create a physical and virtual

training environment on the island to include: 

▶	 Two live-fire ranges (Multi-Purpose Maneuver 	
	 Range and Explosives Training Range). 

▶	 Two surface radar towers. 

▶	 Landing Zones throughout the Military Lease 	

	 Area to be used for ground or aviation training.	
	

▶	 Improvements to North Field including a drop 	

	 zone between runways Able and Charlie. 

▶	 Two ammunition holding areas. 

▶	 The former U.S. Agency for Global Media 		

	 facility on Tinian would be repurposed into an 	

	 expeditionary Base Camp. Existing 			 

	 communications towers on Tinian and Saipan 	

	 would also be repurposed to allow 			 

	 communications during training. 

In addition, subject to CNMI approvals, a

biosecurity facility would be constructed at the

Port of Tinian and an aircraft shelter would be

constructed on U.S. Air Force Divert leased

property at the Tinian International Airport. To

ensure the safety of military training units and the

public during training events, the on-island Range

Control would schedule training and coordinate

with local officials and the public.

Alternatives 
 

Alternative 1 (Preferred Alternative)

Under Alternative 1, land-based military training

on Tinian, including live-fire training at two 
ranges, would be conducted. The training 

tempo under Alternative 1 would increase 

by approximately 15 percent over the No 

Action Alternative. New training infrastructure 

would create a physical and virtual training 

environment on the island. 

Alternative 2

Alternative 2 would include the same land-

based training on Tinian as described for 

Alternative 1, but the training tempo would 

only increase by 5 percent over the No Action 

Alternative. The same infrastructure proposed 

under Alternative 1 would be constructed. 

No Action Alternative

Under the No Action Alternative, land-based

military training on Tinian would continue at 

the current tempo and intensity identified 
for actions previously analyzed under the 

National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA). No 

construction is associated with the No Action

Alternative.

▶	 For more information on the existing

	 environment that would be affected
	 by the Proposed Action on Tinian and

	 the discussion of potential environmental

	 impacts, review Chapters 3 and 4 of the

	 Revised Draft EIS on the project website at:

	 https://www.cnmijointmilitarytrainingeis.com



4

Key Environmental Impacts 

  

Minimizing Public Access Restrictions: Recognizing the importance of community access to

the Military Lease Area, the Marine Corps worked with CNMI leadership to site live-fire ranges and
implement training concepts to enhance public accessibility. For scheduling purposes, the Military

Lease Area would be divided into 8 smaller training areas, allowing the public safe access in areas

where training activities would not be occurring. For safety, during some training events public

access may be limited. However, some training could be conducted without any access controls.

When possible, public access to recreational beaches and tourism areas (e.g., Ushi Point and the

Tinian North Field National Historic Landmark) would continue to be available even when training

may be occurring. 

Range Control: To ensure training unit and public safety during training events, an on-island

Training Area and Range Operations Command (Range Control) would be established. Range

Control would schedule training and coordinate with local officials and the public, providing
advance notifications to help the public plan their activities. Information would be updated in real
time so that the public can gain access to desired areas within the Military Lease Area as soon as it

is safely feasible. Additionally, the Marine Corps would work with the CNMI government to identify

holidays, festivals, or other important days for which public access to the Military Lease Area may

be accommodated. 

Noise: The potential for noise generated during ground and aviation training

events to affect human populations on Tinian was modeled using approved
Department of Defense noise modeling software. The results of this modeling

effort show that new sources of noise, primarily from live-fire training at the
two proposed ranges and from different types of aircraft at North Field and
proposed Landing Zones, would occasionally be audible beyond the Military

Lease Area (for example, at residential, education, or commercial areas in

San Jose or the southern tip of Saipan). Noise from these training activities

would be temporary, occur intermittently over the course of any given year,

and be interspersed with quieter times where less noise-producing activities

or even no military training would be audible. Training-related noise may cause annoyance, but

would be unlikely to interrupt conversations, cause classroom learning interference, or disrupt

sleep. Effects may vary over time depending on individual sensitivity to noise or under changing
weather conditions when it is possible a sound source may be barely detectable one day, but very

loud the next.

We welcome your comments—your input matters! 3

Resources Analyzed in the Revised Draft EIS 
The Revised Draft EIS provides an analysis of the potential impacts of the Proposed Action and

alternatives on the following environmental resource areas:

•	 Public Access

•	 Land Use and Recreation

•	 Socioeconomics

•	 Biological Resources

•	 Cultural Resources

•	 Visual Resources

•	 Transportation

•	 Noise

•	 Air Quality

•	 Public Health and Safety

•	 Utilities

•	 Topography, Geology and Soils

•	 Groundwater and Hydrology

•	 Surface Water and Wetlands



Key Environmental Impacts (continued) 

  

Biological Resources: The Proposed Action was designed to avoid and

minimize direct impacts to federally listed species. Noise generated as part

of training events and construction would pose temporary, intermittent, and

infrequent impacts that may induce behavioral and/or physiological shifts to

Mariana fruit bats. These impacts would be brief and dispersed throughout

the year. Consultation with the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service on Section 7 of

the Endangered Species Act is pending. 

Cultural Resources: Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act of

1966 requires federal agencies to consider the effects of their undertakings
on historic properties. Working through Section 106 of the National Historic

Preservation Act, the Marine Corps has collaborated with consulting parties,

including the CNMI Historic Preservation Officer and the Advisory Council on
Historic Preservation, to minimize the impacts of training on Tinian’s historic

properties and to continue to allow public access to historic properties. 

Water Resources: Potential impacts to groundwater were evaluated by modeling historic and

future community demand with the addition of proposed demand from training, operation and

maintenance, and construction under the Proposed Action. Based on the modeling results, the

Proposed Action would not impact groundwater availability nor would the proposed new potable and

non-potable water wells impact water quality or salinity.

Where can the EIS be found? 
 

The Revised Draft EIS can be downloaded from 

the project website: 

https://www.cnmijointmilitarytrainingeis.com 

Copies are also available for review at the 

following local libraries:  

Tinian Public Library

Joeten-Kiyu Public Library, Saipan

Antonio C. Atalig Memorial Rota Public Library

How do I comment?  
Submit your comment online through the project

website, fill out a comment form at a public meeting,
or mail your comment to: 

CJMT Project Manager

Naval Facilities Engineering Systems Command

Pacific c/o AECOM
415 Chalan San Antonio Road, Suite 112

Baltej Pavilion Building

Tamuning, Guam 96913

2We welcome your comments—your input matters!Please visit the project website https://www.cnmijointmilitarytrainingeis.com 4

The Marine Corps appreciates your feedback on 

the Revised Draft EIS, potential effects to historic 
properties per Section 106 of the National Historic 

Preservation Act, and your time and interest in the 

environmental review process.

For more information scan the QR Code, or visit: 

https://www.cnmijointmilitarytrainingeis.com 



									       
									       
					     	
					     	
				  



Propositu yan Nisisidat 
I propositu nai ma proponi guini na aksion para 

ma ribaha i linachi i gi halom i trening i U.S. Armed 

Forces gi operasion i Indo Pacific na lugat. I ma 
proponi na aksion ha nisisita para u inaturisa i 

U.S. Armed Forces para u fattu gue na eskalera 

nai inetbliga gi lai fiderat, (Title 10) nai para u 
fan ma trening yan u fan gai atmas anai sina ha 

protehi i nasionat na interes U.S. 

3Please visit the project website https://www.cnmijointmilitarytrainingeis.com 2
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